VILLAGE OF

S AURORA

\/&/ Crossroads on the Fox

PLAN COMMISSION AGENDA
VILLAGE HALL BOARD ROOM

25 E. STATE STREET
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 1, 2019
7:00 PM
ROLL CALL
APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Approval of Plan Commission Minutes dated September 3, 2019.

PUBLIC HEARING

1. Petition #19-07 The Village requests amending Title 17 of the North Aurora Municipal
Code (Zoning Ordinance) as follows:

)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Title 17.8.2 to allow Recreational Cannabis Dispensaries in the District B-1 —
Community Business District, B-2 — General Business District and B-3 — Central
Business District as a special use.

Title 17.9.2 to allow Recreational Cannabis Dispensaries in the I-1 - Limited
Industrial District, I-2 — General Industrial District and I-3 — Central Industrial
District as a special use.

Title 17.9.2 to allow Cannabis Craft Growers, Cannabis Infuser Organizations,
Cannabis Processing Organizations, and Cannabis Transporting Organizations in
the I-2 — General Industrial District as a special use.

Title 17.10.2 to allow Recreational Cannabis Dispensaries in the O-R -Office and
Research District and O-R-I — Office Research and Light Industrial District as a
special use.

Title 17.11.2 to establish buffer requirements for Recreational Cannabis
Dispensaries from the perimeter of school grounds, a playground, a recreation
center or facility, a child care center, a public park or public library, or a game
arcade to which admission is not restricted to persons 21 years of age or older.
Title 17.11.2 to prohibit on-site consumption of cannabis as part of any permitted
or conditional use.

NEW BUSINESS

2. Petition #19-07 The Village requests amending Title 17 of the North Aurora Municipal
Code (Zoning Ordinance) as follows:

1) Title 17.8.2 to allow Recreational Cannabis Dispensaries in the District B-1 —
Community Business District, B-2 — General Business District and B-3 — Central
Business District as a special use.




2) Title 17.9.2 to allow Recreational Cannabis Dispensaries in the I-1 - Limited
Industrial District, I-2 — General Industrial District and I-3 — Central Industrial
District as a special use.

3) Title 17.9.2 to allow Cannabis Craft Growers, Cannabis Infuser Organizations,
Cannabis Processing Organizations, and Cannabis Transporting Organizations in the
I-2 — General Industrial District as a special use.

4) Title 17.10.2 to allow Recreational Cannabis Dispensaries in the O-R -Office and
Research District and O-R-I — Office Research and Light Industrial District as a

special use.

5) Title 17.11.2 to establish buffer requirements for Recreational Cannabis Dispensaries
from the perimeter of school grounds, a playground, a recreation center or facility, a
child care center, a public park or public library, or a game arcade to which admission
is not restricted to persons 21 years of age or older.

6) Title 17.11.2 to prohibit on-site consumption of cannabis as part of any permitted or
conditional use.

OLD BUSINESS
1. None.
PLAN COMMISSIONER COMMENTS AND PROJECT UPDATES

ADJOURNMENT



VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 3, 2019

CALL TO ORDER
Chairman Brackett called the meeting to order.

ROLL CALL
In attendance: Chairman Mike Brackett, Co-Chairman Jennifer Duncan, Commissioners, Mark

Rivecco, Anna Tuohy, Aaron Anderson, Tom Lenkart, Mark Bozik and Doug Botkin. Not in
attendance: Commissioner Connie Holbrook.

Also in attendance: Village Administrator Steve Bosco, Community & Economic Development
Director Mike Toth, Village Attorney Kevin Drendel, Village Clerk Lori Murray, Police Chief
Dave Fisher, Mayor Dale Berman.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. Approval of Plan Commission Minutes dated June 4, 2019
Motion for approval made by Commissioner Bozik and seconded by Commissioner Tuohy. All

in favor. Motion approved.

PUBLIC HEARING

1. Petition #19-06 (345 Sullivan Road ) The petitioner requests the following actions on
the subject property
Chairman Brackett opened the public hearing. Those who planned to address the committee stood
and swore to tell the truth.

a. Map amendment to rezone the subject property from the O-R Office Research District to
the B-2 General Business District
b. Special Use to allow an Animal Hospital and Veterinary Clinic

Community & Economic Development Director Mike Toth said that the petitioner was before the
Plan Commission in April. The property being discussed at that time was 361 Sullivan Road. The
petitioner is now looking at is 345 Sullivan Road. The request is to rezone the property from O-R
District to the B-2 District and a special use to allow for a veterinary dental clinic. This time they
are using the existing property with no changes and no parking variance. Staff recommended
approval per the two conditions of the staff report, which includes no overnight boarding of
animals and that any dumpsters be enclosed.

Dr. Stephen Juriga, owner of River Heights Veterinary Hospital in Oswego, addressed the
commissioners. Dr. Juriga said he would like to move his referral veterinary dentistry business to
North Aurora. The building and parking lot better suits their needs. Toth said that the required
parking would be 11 off-street spaces and there are 29 off-street parking spaces located on site.



There were no comments from the audience. Chairman Brackett then closed the public portion of
the hearing.

Commissioner Comments
Commissioner Rivecco asked if there is an outdoor area for pets to be relieved. Dr. Juriga said
that there will be an 8-10 foot gravel area that may be fenced in.

Commissioner Tuohy asked where the dumpster would be located. Dr. Juriga said that it is by the
sidewalk near the property at 345 Sullivan Road. It will also be enclosed.

Motion made by Commissioner Lenkart and seconded by Commissioner Anderson to accept the
rezoning of the property from the OR District to B2 District and allow a special use per staff’s
findings. Reoll Call Vote: Botkin — yes, Duncan — yes, Bozik — yes, Lenkart — yes, Anderson —
yes, Tuohy — yes, Rivecco — yes. Motion approved (7-0).

2. Staff would like to solicit feedback from the Plan Commission and general public on
recreational cannabis businesses.
Village Administrator Steve Bosco stated that the State of Illinois recently passed the Cannabis
Regulation and Tax Act which goes into effect January 1%. Tt will allow for possession and
consumption of small amounts of cannabis throughout the state of Illinois. In the act, it gives local
municipalities the ability to ban the sales of marijuana in their communities or allow it and zone it
into certain districts with regulations. The ban is not banning use of marijuana in the community,
just the sale. It can still be possessed or consumed in the community.

This was discussed before the Village Board and there was an interest in allowing recreational
sales. The thought was to give it to the Plan Commission with the idea of being able to solicit
comments; feedback and public input; and go through zoning channels. It would then go back to
the Village Board before a final decision is made.

Local representatives from the village’s medical marijuana facility, PharmaCann, were present.
They operate in town and their company is involved in recreational sales in other states.

Bosco noted that medical marijuana dispensaries are the first group that get the right to have a
recreational dispensary in Illinois. PharmaCann has submitted a letter to the village that they
would like to have a cohabitated location in which they would sell both medical and recreational
marijuana. Bosco said that there are multiple types of cannabis businesses that are laid out in the
law. Bosco and Toth recommended the village generally regulate those other uses other than
recreational dispensaries in the I-2 General Industrial District as a special use.

Timeline

There has already been a Committee of the Whole review and the Plan Commission review is this
evening. The goal would be to take the workshop information and bring it back to the October
Plan Commission meeting with draft provisions, followed by the Committee of the Whole meeting
in October. After village board discussion, it would go to the November Village Board meeting
for a vote.



Chairman Brackett asked about the connection between PharmaCann and Verilife since both are
referenced. Bosco said that PharmaCann and Verilife are one in the same. They are possibly being
acquired by another company, which they will explain further into the presentation.

State Law
Bosco explained that by May 1%, the state is looking to list 75 recreational licenses. By the
beginning of 2021, they want to have 110 recreational dispensing organization licenses active.

Anyone 21 and over will be able to possess small amounts, 30 grams or about an ounce, of
cannabis. Possession will be permissible in motor vehicles. If they are buying it at a location,
they need to be able to transport it back to a place where they can use it. The law says you have
to use it at a private residence. If you are a licensed cannabis business, you have the ability to
allow consumption at your store. Bosco noted that PharmaCann is not interested in having
consumption on premises. The village board, at their meeting, immediately indicated that they
also had no interest in allowing consumption on premises. Staff also recommended not allowing
consumption on premises.

Revenue
Taxes: The state will have the local state tax, and then there will be an additional tax on each

product which is based on the level of THC in the product. Counties and municipalities will have
the option to place an additional tax. Bosco said that every product will be taxed between 20%
and 40%, depending on what you buy.

The medical marijuana dispensaries are allowed in the Compassionate Care Act. There are 55
medical cannabis dispensaries which serve 46,000 medical patients.

The current medical marijuana dispensary is allowed as a permitted use in business, office and
industrial districts. Under the Compassionate Act it puts a buffer on locations at 1000 feet from
schools, playgrounds and daycares. Bosco noted that is important because the current law has
some ambiguity in it. It says that a recreational dispensary cannot advertise cannabis products
1000 feet from the same aforementioned places. However, it does not say that they cannot locate
a business within a 1000 feet of those locations. The village decided that if you cannot advertise
within 1000 feet, we assume that the buffer will apply. The staff will require a 1000 foot buffer
for zoning.

State Licensing:
There are two major departments of the state that regulate the cannabis businesses. The

Agricultural Department oversees the cultivators and growers. The Department of Financial and
Professional Regulations will oversee the dispensaries. The Village is looking at the legality of a
non-home rule community, such as North Aurora, for acquiring a license. If a business violates
any of the village’s local restrictions, the village can pull the license.

Recreational Cannabis State Operational Requirements (already in the law):
e They cannot be within 1500 feet from pre-existing dispensaries.



o They cannot advertise within 1000 feet from schools or daycares. Cannot have drive-thrus
or vending machines. Cannot offer delivery. There has to be two people working at all
times.

e They can’t sell if cameras are not working, if point of sale computer equipment is not
working or if the state electronic verification system is not working,

e They may operate between 6 a.m. and 10 p.m. local time (village may make reasonably
stricter).

e Can only accept deliveries in a restricted area.

Police Enforcement

DUI Enforcement — driving under the influence of cannabis is prohibited. Currently there is no
standard test for roadside detection of marijuana use. Chief Fisher said that testing would be in
the form of a blood or urine test. A urine test can be done at a police department. A blood test
would need to be done at a hospital. Bosco noted that the state is working to expunge criminal
records for prior marijuana offenses.

State Security Requirements
e Facility has to have the product locked in a limited access area.
Cannot allow people to loiter.
Policy to get people in and out of the facility quickly.
Proper disposal of unused cannabis per the cannabis act.
Cannabis to be kept in restricted areas only.
Must have security/alarm requirements and a security plan.
Interior and exterior lighting, breakproof glass, video surveillance and high definition
cameras.
e Reinforced vault to store money and cannabis products when the facility is closed.

Local Control — Zoning
Villages can opt out of allowing cannabis businesses or can allow with zoning restrictions.

The village was able to get municipal feedback from communities in Colorado, Massachusetts and
Washington. In Wareham, MA they had six or seven police officers assisting traffic during the
first week of sales since there was such a demand.

Commissioner Bozik asked what would happen if a new business, which requires the buffer from
the cannabis business, moves in after the cannabis dispensary is already in place. Community &
Economic Development Director Mike Toth said that the dispensary would have the right to stay.
The buffers are reviewed at the time of application.

Commissioner Lenkart asked what the village would get in tax revenue dollars. Bosco said that
we don’t know exactly what the numbers would be, but it could possibly be a half million dollars
per year. In Wareham, MA the 3% sales tax generated $300,000 in the first six months.

Commissioner Duncan said there is so much addressing security, fear and criminality associated
with this type of business. Isn’t it the same concept as alcohol? However, this is being treated
very differently than alcohol. Duncan said she was curious about what the state was thinking.

4



Attorney Drendel said there is less local control with cannabis than with alcohol. Toth said at the
Committee of the Whole discussion it was noted that cannabis is not being recognized federally.

Commissioner Bozik asked if this will affect the village getting federal grants by going against
federal law. Bosco said he has not heard anything about this being an issue. Bosco said it is not
something that is a village decision as it has already been legalized by the state.

Tuohy asked if this is still a Schedule 1 narcotic. Answer was yes. Tuohy asked if this is a cash
business. Bosco said that PharmaCann will address how this is run in other states.

Tuohy asked what the other communities around North Aurora doing? Bosco said that Naperville
originally said they were going to ban it and has since opened up conversations to discuss zoning
it. St. Charles has a medical dispensary. They went to two operational committees and was
directed to bring it to zoning with the ability to zone no more than two recreational dispensaries in
town. Batavia’s mayor is strongly against but there may be interest by the alderman to discuss it
further. Atty. Drendel said that public discussions are ongoing and the jury is still out. Bosco said
what he read in the paper was that if the Batavia council approve it, the mayor said he would veto
the decision, requiring them to override him with a super majority in order to enact it. A lot of the
communities are just discussing this. What makes the village unique is that we already have a
medical dispensary and they have already informed us they are interested in recreational sales.

At this time, representatives of PharmaCann addressed the Plan Commission:
Matt Levine, Director of Marketing (Pharmacan)

Don Williams, Regional Director for MedMen Enterprises

Mike Richards, Pharmacan, heads outreach and hospitality

Katrina McGuire — land use legal expert

Matt Levine stated that PharmaCann and Verilife are one company. PharmaCann is the parent
company. All dispensary names have been converted to Verilife. It was announced last October
that MedMen, a public cannabis company out of California, is acquiring PharmaCann.

Levine said that there are a lot of myths about cannabis such as the relationship of teen use and
marijuana, property values going down, crime and security problems. Levine said he has talked
to a lot of law enforcement of the last 5 years. In 2013 and 2014 he discussed the issue with law
enforcement and a vast majority were very supportive of the program. All of them had no doubt
there would be violent crimes. However, there has been none of that.

Cash element — banking is an issue. It is less of an issue with businesses like PharmaCann as they
are more sophisticated. In terms of cash, we have secure cash pickup systems. There is a process
with security and police to transfer cash to the bank. Average transaction is $75 - $150 worth of
product when they leave the store.

Gateway drug theory — The addiction rate of cannabis is significantly less when compared to
alcohol.



Don Williams of MedMen provided information regarding their company. MedMen is in the
process of acquiring PharmaCann. MedMen is the largest cannabis company in North America.
Founded in 2010, it operates in 12 states across the U.S. and is publicly traded on the Canadian
Securities Exchange. MedMen does everything from cultivation, dispensing and manufacturing.
Williams said they are primarily a retailer and looking to mainstreaming and normalizing
marijuana.

Mike Richards of PharmaCann addressed the commission regarding store operations. Richards
has been with PharmaCann for four years. Richards said that the company strongly focuses on
community outreach, education, safety and security. Patients are greeted at the desk and have to
provide identification. They have to be 21+ years of age. Customers are carded at entry and at
point of sale. The business provides private consultation rooms and patient care representatives
are available to discuss conditions with its customers. There is a 24-hour community liaison to
field phone calls and answer questions. PharmaCann is also involved in volunteer programs, open
houses and cannabis workshops. In terms of security, cannabis and money is kept in locked vaults.
There is also 24-hour surveillance, remote access to the local police department and alarm systems.

Commissioner Duncan asked if they would be able to start January 1*' where the general
businessman can’t. Answer was yes. Duncan asked if they would need to keep the medical
cannabis business separate from recreational. Answer was that by law the medical product has to
be separate. Customers will be in the same building whether they are there for medical or
recreational, but there will be separate point of sale areas.

Commissioner Bozik asked about the role of the local police for their business in Wareham.
Levine said that they still have officers on site, but a private company does the actual transporting
of money and products. Chief Fisher said he has spoken with the police chief in Wareham who
has provided a lot of information. Commissioner Bozik asked if PharmaCann pays for the police
on site. Levin said yes. Bozik asked about the average number of incidents at the facility in North
Aurora. Fisher said there has been no criminal activity there and they have been very good
neighbors.

Commissioner Botkin asked if their products are standardized across the country. Answer was
because of the federal legality, none of the products can cross state lines. The current 21 medical
growers in the state can sell to the Illinois dispensaries. Products will be standardized for the
dispensaries in [llinois. Screening is state specific and every single product that goes out is tested
and regulated by the Department of Agriculture.

Lenkart asked if the petitioner is looking to move to the Clocktower location. Levine said that is
one location. Lenkart said if average sale is $75 - $150, does the business red flag someone who
buys large amounts or comes in frequently. Answer was that it is tracked and regulated by the
state.

Commissioner Anderson said that from a land use perspective, there was a reference to managing
your queue. Will there be a pre-order line and a regular line? Will there be a huge rush of people?
Would you have people waiting inside the dispensary or outside? Don Williams said that they will
overstaff that store to its needs. Everything is designed to get the customer in and out in a timely




manner. Customers may take a little more time at first, but technology will assist for future visits
since customers will already be in the system. The plan is to overstaff for the first six months.
Online orders are also allowed.

Tuohy asked if they are integrated with the state for tracking. Levine said that the state tracking
system in Illinois is called Biotrack. On the business side, we can also use Biotrack which is a
POS system, but we use another system that we custom made. NAV, our Microsoft based
platform, speaks directly to Biotrack. Bosco said this came up at the board level and we have not
seen anything about purchasing frequency or the amount you can buy. It just says you cannot
possess any more than a particular amount. Bosco said he assumes what will happen is when they
come out with the actual regulations and talk about tracking, it will also note the frequency. Tuohy
asked how this ties in with the privacy act. Will an adult consumer be able to delete their
information through privacy acts? Don Williams said the statute addresses that. We cannot do
anything with customer information. Levine said he would check into whether or not a person
could delete their information from the system.

Tuohy asked, in terms of 24/7 support, if the company would be partnering with law enforcement
for complaints? Answer: In Illinois, local and state police get a live look into the facility.

Tuohy asked if there would be any other support systems, such as assisting a person who is
struggling with addiction. Levine said that there is not a structured support system, but customer
service reps are trained to identify these issues.

Tuohy asked if the DARE program would address marijuana. Chief Fisher said that the DARE
program is a set curriculum and doesn’t address it at this point. It is put together by the state and
assumes they will do the same with legalized marijuana as they do with alcohol.

Tuohy asked who would be monitoring those who might be loitering in the area. Levine said they
would and that there will be one person sitting at one desk and watching interior and exterior
monitors. Cameras will cover a 360 view and there will be no blind spots in the interior. The local
police can also tap into the company system at any time.

Commissioner Rivecco asked how many customers they have a day in the NA facility. Levine
said about 100. With the additional for recreational, it would possibly be 500. This number would
thin out over time. There will be a spike in the beginning and as more stores open up and there is
less excitement about it, that number would decline.

Lenkart noted that MedMen are in the process of purchasing the company. Would it be realistic
for them to accomplish this by January 15'? Levine said that whether the deal closes or not by the
end of the year, the two companies are already working together.

Anderson asked if there are any studies showing the economic impact the adult use dispensary
brings to stimulating business. Levine said he was not aware of any studies but will look into it.
In towns like Wareham, which is on the list of economically depressed municipalities in
Massachusetts, feedback was that it is bustling in the downtown area.



Duncan asked if they are limited to being in North Aurora or can you go anywhere in Illinois.
Answer was that they could go anywhere, but feasibly it would not be good because of the process.
Legally we are not restricted from moving to another municipality. Williams said we are
technically limited to the medical district we are in today and therefore limited in the area we could
move.

Bozik asked if they will be selling accessories or just cannabis. Answer was that they are selling
devices as well, noting that ancillary products make up less than 1% of sales.

If they are not ready with a new location by January 1%, they will be at their Route 31 location as
a medical and recreational facility.

Katrina McGuire, Thompson Coburn (zoning counsel for PharmCann) said that the medical
facilities are given first opportunity to open a recreational site. The effective date was in July since
that was when the governor signed. No one can sell until January 1st. PharmaCann has already
applied for all of their co-located sites.

PUBLIC COMMENT - None

Workshop for zoning in North Aurora

Mike Toth addressed the Plan Commission regarding zoning in North Aurora. Toth said that we
can look at what St. Charles has done by placing a limit the number of dispensaries. St. Charles is
placing a limit on the number of dispensaries at two — one on each side of the Fox River. There
are also buffer requirements. A medical site is required to have a 1000 foot buffer from schools,
parks and daycares. North Aurora allows medical sales in all nonresidential districts as a permitted
use. Cultivation centers as a special use in the I-2 District. It was mentioned that craft growers
should be filtered into the I-2 District as a special use. The other uses can be lumped together as
a special use in the I-2 District.

Lenkart asked how many possible locations the village could have. Bosco said the village could
possibly have 4 or 5. Bozik said that with the buffers and amount of competition, the number of
businesses will regulate itself. Chairman Brackett asked each commissioner if he/she wanted to
limit or not hmit the number of businesses. Botkin — limit, Bozik — no limit, Duncan — limit,
Lenkart — no limit, Anderson — no limit, Tuohy — limit, Rivecco — no limit.

Bosco said staff recommends special use. The Plan Commission recommended special use in all
of the industrial, business and ORI districts.

Toth asked if the commission wanted to require buffers. Rivecco suggested leaving it the same as
the medical cannabis facilities.

Duncan suggested regulating architectural design. Toth said the village can address this in the
special use process.

Toth asked if the Plan Commission wanted to add any additional use standards: hours of operation,
security.



PharmaCann said that their business hours in other states are 10:00 a.m. — 7:00 p.m. Toth said that
staff recommended 10 a.m. — 8 p.m.

Chief Fisher said his concern was with security and how they operate their business. With what he
has seen tonight, he is satisfied with those types of measures that were explained, such as security,
cameras, and vaults.

Toth said that they will bring this back with some of the recommendations, advertise the hearing
and come back before the Plan Commission.

NEW BUSINESS - None
OLD BUSINESS - None

PLAN COMMISSIONER COMMENTS AND PROJECT UPDATES
Dental office on Randall Road — Toth said that staff met with the owners, plumbing and building
inspectors, Fox Metro Water Reclamation, builders and architect.

Chipmunk Brewery — He has applied for a liquor license but no permit yet. Still moving forward.

ADJOURNMENT
Motion for approval made by Commissioner Lenkart and seconded by Commissioner Botkin. All

in favor. Motion approved.

Respectfully Submitted,

Lori J. Murray
Village Clerk




Staff Report to the Village of North Aurora Plan Commission

To:

Prepared By:
Petition:
Hearing Date:
Request(s):

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Plan Commission Members

cc: Steve Bosco, Village Administrator

Mike Toth, Community and Economic Development Director
#19-07 — Cannabis Business Land Use Text Amendments

October 1, 2019

Title 17.8.2 to allow Recreational Cannabis Dispensaries in the District B-
1 — Community Business District, B-2 — General Business District and B-3
— Central Business District as a special use.

Title 17.9.2 to allow Recreational Cannabis Dispensaries in the I-1 -
Limited Industrial District, I-2 — General Industrial District and I-3 —
Central Industrial District as a special use.

Title 17.9.2 to allow Cannabis Craft Growers, Cannabis Infuser
Organizations, Cannabis Processing Organizations, and Cannabis
Transporting Organizations in the I-2 — General Industrial District as a
special use.

Title 17.10.2 to allow Recreational Cannabis Dispensaries in the O-R -
Office and Research District and O-R-I — Office Research and Light
Industrial District as a special use.

Title 17.11.2 to establish buffer requirements for Recreational Cannabis
Dispensaries from the perimeter of school grounds, a playground, a
recreation center or facility, a child care center, a public park or public
library, or a game arcade to which admission is not restricted to persons 21
years of age or older.

Title 17.11.2 to prohibit on-site consumption of cannabis as part of any
permitted or conditional use.

BACKGROUND

On June 25th, 2019, Governor J.B. Pritzker signed the Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act,

Ilinois House

Bill 1438, into law. This law makes cannabis (marijuana) legal to sell

throughout the State of Illinois. Adults 21 and over will be allowed to purchase, possess,
and consume cannabis. The bill will go into effect on January 1st, 2020, and addresses
many different aspects of cannabis.

The Village will have the choice to prohibit or significantly limit the location of a
cannabis business within its jurisdiction by ordinance. Zoning will be needed for
cultivation centers, craft growers, infusers, processors, transportation organizations and



Staff Report

#19-07

10/1/19 Plan Commission
Page 2 of 3

dispensaries. The Village also has authority to determine if consumption of cannabis can
be allowed on premise at dispensaries.
From a zoning perspective, the Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act provides local authority
the ability to:
e Opt out of allowing cannabis businesses
o Can allow recreational cannabis of certain businesses while prohibiting
others
e Enact zoning ordinances and regulations designating the time, place, and manner;
examples include:
o Predefining the number of establishments
o Limiting the location of cannabis businesses by:
e Zoning district
e Adopting setbacks (i.e. buffers) from schools, parks, day cares, etc.
e Requiring a minimum distance between establishments
o Classifying use as permitted or special use in various zoning districts
o Reasonably limiting hours of operation
o Prohibiting on-site consumption

For reference purposes, the Village allows medical cannabis dispensaries in all business,
office and industrial districts as a permitted use and cannabis cultivation centers as a
special use in the I-2 General Industrial District.

The Village Board discussed recreational cannabis businesses at their August 5, 2019
Committee of the Whole meeting. While the Village Board indicated they were not
interested in allowing the miscellaneous cannabis businesses (craft growers, infusers,
processors, transportation organizations) and on-site consumption of cannabis, they
wanted to further explore the idea of allowing recreational cannabis dispensaries and
directed staff to solicit input from the Plan Commission.

The Plan Commission discussed this item during a workshop session at their
September 3, 2019 meeting. At that time, Plan Commission members were asked whether
they would want to limit the number of recreational cannabis dispensaries; if there is a
particular zoning district appropriate for recreational cannabis dispensaries; whether
recreational cannabis dispensaries should be a permitted or special use; and whether the
Village should adopt setbacks for setbacks from schools, parks, and day cares. The
following is a general summation of the Plan Commission’s feedback:

Limit the number of recreational cannabis dispensaries

While some Plan Commission members commented that there should be a limit on the
number of recreational cannabis dispensaries, many believed that the number of
recreational cannabis dispensaries should not be capped.

Outcome — the proposed text amendments do not include a limitation on the number of
recreational cannabis dispensaries.



Staff Report

#19-07

10/1/19 Plan Commission
Page 3 of 3

Particular zoning district appropriate for recreational cannabis dispensaries

The Plan Commission was seemingly supportive of allowing recreational cannabis
dispensaries in all non-residential zoning districts, similar to that of medical cannabis
dispensaries.

Outcome — recreational cannabis dispensaries are being proposed in all non-residential
zoning districts.

Whether recreational cannabis dispensaries should be a permitted or special use

The Plan Commission debated on whether or not to allow recreational cannabis
dispensaries as a permitted use with specifically adopted use standards or allow it as a
special use. The Plan Commission concluded that recreational cannabis dispensaries
should be a special use to allow the Village to regulate the use on a per-lot basis.

QOutcome — recreational cannabis dispensaries are being proposed as a special use in all
non-residential zoning districts.

Whether the Village should adopt setbacks for setbacks from schools, parks, and day

cares
Staff presented a buffer map to the Plan Commission, which included a 1,000 foot

setback from existing schools, parks, and day cares. The 1,000 foot setback required of
medical cannabis dispensaries and the advertisement of cannabis products was used as
the basis for the 1,000 foot buffer. Staff notes that the medical dispensary setback was
removed by the state and is no longer required for establishments that opened after
July 1, 2019.

Outcome — a 1,000 foot buffer is being proposed from recreational cannabis dispensaries
to the perimeter of school grounds, a playground, a recreation center or facility, a child
care center, a public park or public library, or a game arcade to which admission is not
restricted to persons 21 years of age or older.

Staff notes that the following provisions are also being proposed at this time:

e Cannabis craft growers, cannabis infuser organizations, cannabis processing
organizations, and cannabis transporting organizations as special uses in the
I-2 — General Industrial District as a special use.

e The prohibition of on-site consumption of cannabis as part of any permitted or
conditional use.



_ . ¢o¢=< 2K . F._I.h.a - E ™ _r..
. HLMON W 3 T THTT™

40 39V TIIA ! . -

Vi =S =
|

- n@@

—_——
1Iwhs

L011SIQ SSINISNG TVELNID ¢-9 (B LOJWLSID IVIMISNAN] TYELNID ¢ [l
LNINGOTIAIA LINN QINNYTd TSN QAN ¥-W2-8 ] LORILSIA TVINLSNAN TYMINIO 2+ [l LOINLSIA TYIMLSNANI HONVISTH 301440 RO =
, L111S1Q $SINISNE TVHANIO -8 [E]  LOIJLSIA TVIMLSNANI QZUWN i+ [ LONMLSI0 HOWYASIN 301440 0 ]

SjoMIsiQg sseujsng 21810 [epsnpu| 3913810 MO

A O

siqeuued 4000}




THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2019 DALY HERALD secion s PAGE 8

legal notices

e, o o %mm s, "
al r'- s"r“nif' INa[s LF % uid INO}
i e %ﬂia ""'" i

§l

EEI:'?%E:'I‘; T gﬁmﬁ"n I'l:g'l,: s ihe -nn-m oS e #.,.L" A-'H‘H‘mm“m.'fﬂm #
SEELEEE =y %"ﬁ-u."“” e ﬁ.;" b -r.%f
e :mm: ot l"'-“"? I-m: m %WTWJ

o g e i R e el :'n'.'E."-.." I Sl | -n--m-— e 'ﬂtﬂ-—
FhRe Sl Bt Bt ien & |

“‘igwﬁf s‘::a ik

Ly "1."'..""
u. mnuu

SeEEY .r:w-ﬂ.'-'ur'.;_,,..wg

..
TREE:
§§’

L sio. State 118, Hineciale 1L | 39758 with ot sethack | i

L i BT e s T O

5
ARD FOSTER

i
H
2
f
{]
§

il
ik
é! -
fys i
:s%eai%g
Jiai}%ﬁ
a§:”§.
it
éif
!?55

o B T A
] R T ] [y

b 1 e Gty | Rt Mk, sy

ors AN deriaes
|-muv|n-r-u¢uv-mf-"v='imr-5'*
ﬂhhl o v

:ﬁ “‘"‘"{.’Hﬂ.‘ﬂ! '&E:T
‘ﬁ!%u {14 Mﬂmlﬂinﬂ. S,.."H’ﬁm "%%'W

g m’h’ﬂ%—'ﬁ.ﬂ- PR LU DGET

u-r-nm-_ru.mnmn. HAUT l\‘.(;

"'"E’-’.ﬂ."s SERLEEV S

P

bEdl
;§§§
i
1
4
;
el

il

5,
isg;éé‘
o
l-
A
i

%!

fif
i
%ﬁ

55_
i
I

E"“ g gﬂ%ﬂ;gﬁ R S E:z:*:i‘
msnm !" ’gﬁ S.‘Eﬂﬂ'ﬂ"-’ mu.

e -m"m-n ‘
mfm.m

l-n-nlmmh
ication  hovies  bevn

2523
P |28
5?%
= i

E
ﬁgi
55353
iii
i
B,

f i

o : 5
he i, dnat @ pet mm‘%mﬂ ] $ comia) Bratect uess. The 2 prsi
E .“Esg"f—" e .,mmmm.. S e
o r i (vl | o =4 i
SRS Rt B Siens gﬁ;ﬁﬁ" e i
e O Sl ENPetees B Sl e BRI T
el ESmn T
EiEe s SRt SIS SELSRT I B e
I e S N B ey
E” SR SaanE FIES S e e
AU N e e e e S i A i)
) o ‘ln"'l" ;:um‘ ey k ;"-':hﬁ;lwgﬁ R, u.’n’ﬂﬂvn-—-‘u.--a.l‘ ; Bcr.!ckAPr:vm'j
s el 2L A e T T [ ol Pocei
vn‘tmﬂhm& g”ﬁﬁ"ﬁalgﬁm -mrwm_‘ = ._.: "‘W :.:..-u Ri 5
o o lecations, e ¢ ey fervs e -]
.nisg o :m. at;m;;;m,?“"""":ﬁ ELEeE e = 5 = tjﬁﬁ"ﬁ i
i e g'-"-'“’:' T, ﬁ?a'.‘n“'“"‘ 000,008 - 1o panfatly supoor aukr s lmﬂnm-num n-w "'ﬂ.ﬂt e

T. LAMDERT, SECRETARY OF HOUSING ml. e v -'\'—": en v 2 M " D.I‘I Pt ion
&ﬁ?ﬁ&@,ﬁﬁfﬁ R ones %.E'E.u e o N I i mmm

%?’!ﬁ'm ‘?Igﬁ ﬂF- "mm 2 e
ua e gm'.. i s w,‘;-;.';;___ﬁ“ L ‘_‘,;"""""‘:'f%"; ¥T_' m'f A e
;E ﬂ“‘f‘ Yk.-% 15“:5 Chon ': gﬁ:ﬁ%& %‘: i [z o et Setoner T B T
, m“ "F' u-mnrn. P (4ST99T) | Considdarisinn of " e

Asphalt &
Concrete

Commercial

T

mesiings. inter- ﬁ
.-ﬁﬁ"frnm; "“a-' Vo riliiiibe, et o e “'-" “ﬁm‘“‘ﬁn %Eag %-‘ .
avia agion, | Sarem, o
%; i ..‘k;% hol M ulﬁ B iy Y l: o "-...Em.. o A
T COl lﬂ
et

umh:;ﬂl-':' Lore Imifed do atiend

ii

b e L
i ] oo . 12 ilee n"*"'-("

o 1» inpravad adiiyg single fomily rrakderc. Enun'm :ﬂ

',f’" " mn'mu:- mm ripE J:"“....,.. ] T gy
e “"""'-'-"'ra'"'*" FahEa s e e ey | Residential .
‘Eﬁﬁiﬁ% ez e o lebemind | e 47:228.£048
i At
&  TUwadey,

"‘EA

kS ﬂwp,@*%flﬁﬁgﬁﬂ‘m e ] %ﬁm ,IS*"E' 2 eyt ,_ ﬂ"wﬁwmmﬁ'%:&'ﬁé M | 0471774 6655
e e S B m""""’""%‘f‘;ﬁ-‘m ElERESETs o seuions | e
e e e | ..:-'@mvw“’:"& i
B et G et R W:.?é“s’."m.‘m.c.m- s -. : Sl
e ﬂ:ﬂ% A
e Sl | ST P i ] i R
“." Coniaon The scke'e Foriar SORLEe T8 'EL' uﬁ‘nﬁm"*’“n‘g&h e, E"m O & Eg‘ . h‘?'ﬁ. "i B mw m(l ""'"" o}
o EEtam B e S Ao ik Jtl M
..;‘.ﬁ%ﬂ“‘w‘éﬂm ?" m n.wcﬁm unJ "3’ T ahd Bl oD Coptr e T 208 () | FUBMMRE, mnumnnml,u.nnm:ﬂ;

e ......,2........:"“" Zih ,,Jﬁh;";w‘. TR ] T —
523 i pramEn BT T | s B i S
un o ) Rt { X mm MCHENRY mmm .

%wl“ﬁw“’"m do B 2 Pome ool B BORER o e, S
Vl-m Karm

e o e | e et g re . || e Bosed Wb o O Darogis Pl Lirwy o s hidoss
aheis B ot e || Disinct Lakn. ‘nd cherry Couriiew, Bcko,  TOTAL ESTIMATED AUDIT FUND.
oo A B £ B mrﬂ'ﬁﬂ?'n- L] e o of o s et G0 ey ety iy pipsn  siace
X kil e 'F' tog il -~ ey ] [
! A [ HE"-'T\'{'H 3 Toe v -m" J— == "Sucos Acorprston
P f%E . I ——— | inta OADILANGT PACVIDING FOR BUDGET ARD Qreunds Rencvetion 21330 PR
Yol an oves b7 mmm mwm“_., APPROPRIATIONS OF BARMINGTON PUSLI LIGRARY  TOTAL EVTBMTED BPECI. RERERVE
ool Pﬁ"‘"‘%ﬁ" M i Teaaae || DiTRIOT. coow Kae, Lox=, A4 ucHENY NG EXPEROITURCS Riniw sy
% OUNTICE. ILUNOR FIOAL YEAR BURDM MAMTEMAMGE UMD (T3 LG 80-1 6035
'""" SOMS priificaii Jor v Siner i o2 Jatablich || BEQRMNG AT 1, 2910 ANG ENORK JUNEJ0, S, Exbmsted Expendiurss Eﬂ."ﬁ"
i %, 3 || oo o o o Metng o e 0k Bewd o Ly Edcly abimaron e 1
| mnn-nvm =] B P e sy | P o o b 518 "7 Eguesest Wartmecs o  sxomm
EiTg ‘i‘z r:zmw .-u., e S .‘H:l-_mlmmllmmh i Unindssance Simss  $200000
i us pokaT) n -h—%ﬁ T end 0 MO DPIIOIIRES ‘SaRAS 11000171
& T I L A "_.:m.‘-: iy
3" G .u . 5 Y- - Scmasion 1§ Soand et Exury Budties e Lt
Sg?;g_mw B Esoeral Pesosl Jrarace ﬂ‘-’:"vh"':'%:mn et e s Poasms 8000 102503
RBLVE 2TE ine _f Tromaier gﬁ‘mmn..- e (b e T et e Sk CODMATED RRURANGE
o e — ..",'.r' jf& = Gy PG || APPROPRGATIONS OF THE SAMMRITONPUSLC QAT AND OONATION BN
L Z s f&tathe) LSFRy DISTRACS Cook KANE, LIS, M0 Eximetod Emondures Butnet smriain:
m L T preveass textomending | | Mciess corea, FORTHEFCALYEAR  Ubnary Praram #1000 SIese
"c"'" T T g ".'J""%"""‘ VATEAR. oo ok o dse o e DarreA FuSls Ly b smo  sizes
e ﬁ'm"’""“""'"m“’ ﬁ"""m f,....,n e e Arrorss Vi, | | Lixwry Divnc, Goca: Kaom Lake, mid McHry Gounies,  TGTAL ENTRAATED QIFF ANO
b m n,m.ﬂ‘ o s u“n-#ﬂ-: Bk b s o ool be i o iy DONATON FUMO SUBNCITUREIROND | K
T ey o o e Prpoa r'llunm"ﬁmmnl encoptrmn e i, || wakdLexmy Deiofor Ve iy BegrinnD Ay 1. 2078 upoes. W e ecul Y Dugaiing i 1. ET0 @
itce ol e c commanis ol | | und sncing June 30, 2000 md g dva 30,2520 b fud shai e 13
THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE WTH JUDICIAL [TV B e beerion, o[ WHEREAL e Ao | e g AUND sosaa
COUNTY - WHEATGH, ILLtNG1S e o | e ease) Carn mﬂ.‘__......:..m..-u' BOCIAL SECLATTY Eunem
o el I | e T |
FeR e uv R, m P ] | - e e et Y gmu"::"‘m"““"“ """:ﬁE
ELIAS B, nri = m-u'&re DRIVE ST TR, BE [T GROANED by et TGTAL,
USED Wusless of e Bavigion Publa Lirwy Diaric, Crek.  Swchen 4 Thet ol traomdad banows of wry bem
- Kerw. Lake, oyt Moty Gourbrs e, s oflors: or s of ay puerel spADpELn i tha Ordeunce be
ne X CAR Sostion 1 Trat the umess Ivehefte wet forth, or os  exaerded I making Lo sy insuiciency in ry har kem
%ﬂa R LS e w R | e e S by g
Pfﬁfm X iy TO B Y B Raas Tk e e, o oemaingy o sl o evsbaie o o | { [
- nni'g- U arme oy el (o e colperais FUBoUm e e 1 o Sovowt Revrve Frd o Dy accumaied a8
i . Ih-u YOUR Exrropn P Thrmy Dl Cock fne obe, w0 et by 75 K 160040, 75 3 164030, s 13
ﬁ PR ||EETE RS S
AL l’.‘h};mm wiiie |[Fevprnsl e e ey
WA, oy = AroGELon fx DR T Dab Vrtkd, & ewso wh & gwral oo

o for e pouo of e Berrngion b Uiy Divrit hoa. adoptnd 5 Toritin
o ot fcnt mmcharns s lhvay g AL B8 execpastin Ordrapes. & Gy o ich
I, 'J“»mﬁ" i i you £ e and omicte i puoh: Vapuckon Gty e
E i Tl oy (DS, e Nl L S e S
o l-nl.-n-: iy g 8 e ko Septamier 9. 2070, 4
By oy o 0 s . 720 pum. In the At Gomtarence oo of e
Iﬂ'm hmmm- iiated o | renple ko, - Gaurigon Arsa Uiz,
o) E %E’-"h ot Sl e iyt Gmol Sk b T i ek, i, v sramon o
T Drevs. o .
L 'ﬂ'mﬁ'--ﬂ' Vo Cndlriar e v | acenas T ek o S % pas of ranwces
Rl 5 ‘wo ..mmu roptin | i %—‘m ‘confictig wh any provson of e Ordnance ba and
Mt l'v'-' ) 'mmn e || Dmmvmut g STEASI Eoboes  “eetan b Tom wobsce Ao b 1l e wd et
& Corcomistun o a._m‘ 5 | oy Rstare NI v d s Ee e oo 9% mson
ol .‘E"‘"ﬁ:‘u 'r"'::‘r,'& %‘:"‘"‘ i i Oparthg Emetb1 TTE 580000 tbvary DR Coon K, saam, and ity Gt
"'-"ﬂ: r‘:‘:.::""k%"“""."' 13:;"' |-'§ e Tetres Sltone N3 Drien aveammows - —
"‘“""""»?-'-ﬁ’ B S e I e B
-4 E SNt R Aatws. Ui Mir, #2. Trv
P TAOls BUCEOMOOL L\ ormerte, asrict i ey A Bmw S e
i R s ey || hse B feusenyt s
A SR faien Wimam e IR Homm 1 Ot M
nﬂ{'&i& e e r 'RETHELEAT LA Aty FLAED W0 1.CB M7-171) Pressineh bt Bonteen o the
ﬂﬁ OF IThod W Theia ey 3 |- y
s o w:m.. A | AL e e
"Jﬂ’ Wﬂm‘ Surmglon Pubiia Lixary Olsirmt
pubtnped i ﬁ IE E"ﬁn LoATI Pl 1 Dl Harsk Saptaron 12, 2018 4632149




